UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,
v. Case No. 19-CR-151
OSCAR ALONSO,

Defendant,

PLEA AGREEMENT

1. The United States of America, by its atterneys, Richard G. Frohling, Assistant -
Uiited States Atforney for the Eastern District.of Wisconsin, and William J. Roach, Assistant
United States Attotney, and the defendant, Oscar. Alonso, individuaﬂy and by attorney
Christopher Haitley, pursuarit to Rule 11 of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure; enter into
the following plea agreement

CHARGES

2. The défenidant-has Been charged in three ‘counts of-an eleven: count Superseding
Indictmerit which allege violations of Title 21, United States Code; Sections 841, 846 and Title
18, United States Code, Sections 924(c)(1)(A), 1956,-and 2.

3. Theé defendarit has read and fully undetstands the charges éontained in'the
Superseding Indictment. He fully vnderstands the riature.and elements of the crimes with-which.
he tias been charged, and those charges and the terms and conditions of the plea agreement:have

been fully explained to hiin by his attorney.
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4, The defendant voluntarily agrees to plead guiliy-to the following.count set forth in.
fuall as follows:
COUNT ONE

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT:

L. Beginiing in»-approxi?izat'ely'May 2017, and conitinuing until on or about
August 2, 2019, # the State and Eastern District of Wiseonsin and.elsewhérje,

RUBEN NMI ORTIZ, JR.,
ALEJANDRO.NMI LOPEZ,
FRANCISCONMI MARTINEZ,
HECTORM. GOMEZ-SALAS,
OSCAR NMI ALONSO,.
‘GABIEL Y. BONILLA,
CEDRIC D. COHEN,
TERRY A. JOHNSON, and
RICHARD.D. GUYETTE
knowingly and intentionglly con;pired‘wz’theach other-and with persons known and uriknown to
the-grand jury, 10 distribute and possess with-the intent 10. distribute controlled substances; i
violation of Title 21, United States-Code, Section 841(a)(1).

2 The guaniity of drugs snvolved in ihe conspirdey involved 1 kilogram-or more of a
mixture an‘dis'{ub's'tan,c"e' containing heroin, a Schedule I controlled substance; 5 kilogratis or
more 'Qf o mixture and substarice contdining cocaine, a Schedle H controlled substance; 28
grawms or move of d mixture and substance containing cocaine buse; inthe form of “erack”
‘cocdine, a Schedyie 1T comrolie'd-:subsr'aﬁnce‘; in-excess of 400°grams of a.mixture and substance
containing a detéctable amount of ‘N-phenyl-N-[1 ~'(2-pheny‘lérhyl)—4—piperidz‘nyl] propanamide,
also knovn as fentanyl, a Schedule I controlled substanceé; 50 grams or inore of tmixture and ’
substance contdining ingthamphetaming, a Sehedule I controlled substance; and.a mixture and

substance containing marijuana, a ScheduleT controlled substance.

A1l imviolation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections §46 and 841 (D(A).
2
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5. The defendant-acknowledges, understands, and agrees.that he is, in fact, guilty of
the offense described in paragraph 4. The parties acknowledge and-understand that if this case
wete to proeeed to trialy the-gevernment would be able to prove the following facts beyond.a

reasonable doubt, The deféndant admits that these facts are ttue and correct and establish his

guilt beyond a reasonable doubt;

The Brown County Drug Task Force and othet law enforcement agencies, investigated a
drug organization led by Ruben Ortiz Jt. and including Oscar Alonse that distributed ¢ontrolled
substances,‘b.eg’imﬁng in at least. May 2017 and confinuing to August 2019. The. investigation
icluded statements by confidéntial informants, controlled purchases of vatious drugs, and search
watrants executed on residences in the Green Bay area utilized by conspiracy members, forthe:sale
and storage-of controlled substances.

The-BCDTF also met with a confidential source (CS-1 Y who, advised he obtained heroin
from Alonso before €S-1 werit to prison in 2015. After his retedse from prison in May 2017, CS-
1. received. 4 pounds. of methamphetamine.-..ﬁmn:‘Al’onso but did net ask for more as. there was
frisufficient demand. Affer fhat, CS-1 stated Alonso. supplied him with -9-18 ounces fo kilo
quantities of cacaineon eredit, CS-1 shiained it fiom Alonso-in Milwavlkee or Alonso would travel
to Green Bay for the sale, This occuited.on a weekly basis for séveral months: €S-1 indicated that
in early May 219, Alonso-contacted him and requested cocaine and approximately Y kiloto:one
kilo heroih, Alonso advised CS-1 that e would send an ‘individual, later idenfified as James
Parkinson, to meet with €S-1 in order to provide:money-and obtain the heroin and cocaine. Cs-1
indicated that Alonso directed Parkinson toa location in Green Bay where S-1 placed the heroin
aind cocaine nto the trap-car and retrievéd an amount of cash. €S-1 indicated that several Hours
later, he received acell phone cal] ftom Alonso advising that Parkinsen was arrested in Manitowoe,

A BCDTE confims that onMay 10, 2019, Patkinson was artested after his car was stopped
in Manftowoe County and 500 grams cocaine and 230 grams heroin was: seized. Parkinson

possessed that amount of cocaine aiid heroin with the intent to deliver it to Alonso..

BCDTF also met with a second confidential source (CS-2) who stated.he purchiased
kilogramg-of cocaine fror-Alonso for the past three years-approximately one kilogram pér month..
(:S-2 indicated that he. observed Alonso ‘with as many as five kilograms of -cocaine. CS-2 also
observed Alonso with methdmphetamine aid up to 20 pounds of mérijuana. Alonso told CS-2 that
more money could be-made selling heroin but CS-2 wasnot interested in selling heroin,’ (8-2 said

Alonso: was biinging cocaine to-Green Bay and trading it for héroin.

Alonso agrees that the quantity of-drugs involved in the ‘conspiracy-as a'result of his'own
condugt and the coniduct of othei- conispir tor's feasonably foresegable o him involved ih excess of

5 kilogranis of cocaine and: I kilogram of heroin:
Thig.information is p’rcvide& for the purpose of setting forflya factudl basis for the plea of
guiilty. Tt is not a full yecitation of the defendant’s knowledge of, or participatioft in, these offenses.

PENALTIES
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6. The parties understand and agree that Count One carries the following maximum
penalties: a maximum of life imprisonment and 2:$10,000,000 fine; a mandatory minimum term
of 10 yéars of imprisonmet; and a-mandatory special assessment of $100, -Count One also

require$ at least'3'years: of supetvised release, and a rhaximuim of a lifétime on supervised

release.
Dismissal of Other Count
7. The government agrees 1o move to dismiss the remaining counts-of the

Superseding Indictment-as fo Alonso at the time of sentencing.

8. ‘The defendant acknowledges, understands, and.agrees that he has:discussed the
reélevant statutes as well as the. applicable sentencing guidelines with hiis attorney. including any
possibility ‘that the defendant miay gualify as career offender unider the senteneing.guid'elines.

PROGE OF DRUG WEIGHT FOR® STATUTORY MAXIMUM PENALTY

9. The parties understand and agree that for thevpenalt‘i'es in21 U.S.E. §

841(b)(1)(A) to apply,.as provided in patagtaph 6 above, the government must prove heyend a

reasonable doubt that the-offense to which the defendant is pleading guiltyinvolved atleast 1

kilogram of heroin, 5 Kilograms ot-more of cocaine, and 50 grams or more of actual

‘methamphetarnine. The defendant agrees that the: go.yc}rnme‘:nt‘posséssés-éufﬁ(jien’c,_ admissible

evidence to meet this burden,

ELEMENTS
10. The parties understand-and-agree that in order to sustain the charge set forth in
Clount One, the gevernment must preve each of the following prgpesiﬁons.-beyond a reasonable
doubt:
First, the conspiracy as alleged inthe indictment existed; ‘

Second, the-defendant knowingly and:intentionally joined the conspiracy with the intent to
further its objective.
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Turther, while hot an element, for-the increased peualties to.apply; the government must
prove that the offense involved 1 kilogram: of herain, 5 kilograims.ox mere of cocaine; or 50 grams
ot mote.of actual metliamphétamine.

SENTENCING PROVISIONS

11. “The:parties agree. to-waive the tiriie limits in Fed. R. Crim. P. 32-felating to the
presentence ﬁep.drt_,_:in_cludi'ng‘ that the presentence report be disclosed not less than 35 days
before the sentencing hearing, in favor of a schedule-for disclosure; and the filing 4of any
objeetions, to'be established by the court-at the:change of plea hearing.

12, The parties acknowledge, undsrstand, and agreehat any sentence imposed by the
court will be pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act, and that the court will give due regard to
the Sentencing Guidelines when senteneing the defendant.

13. The deferidant acknowledges arid agrees thiat his attoriey hias discussed the
potentially z;ppliéabl‘e-:sentenciﬁg..guidélines‘ provisions with him to'the defendan’é’s~sati‘sfacﬁon.

14, The parties acknowledge and understand that priorto sentencing the United States

Probation Office will ¢onduct ifs own investigation of the defendant’s criminal history. The

‘parties further acknowledge ard understand that, atthe time the defendant enters:a guilty plea,

the parties may nothave full and complete. information regarding the-defendant’s eriminal

‘istory. The paities acknowledge, understand, and agree that the defendant may not move:to.

withdraw the guilty pléa solely as a result of the senfencing court’s determination of the
defendant’s ceiminal history.

Sentencing Guidelines Calculaﬁons.

15. The defendant acknowledges and understands that ihe sentencing guidelings
recommendations contained inthis agreement do not create-any-right to be sentenced within any
particular sentence 1ange; and that the.court may impose a reasonable sentence above Or below

the guideline range. The parﬁe,szﬁu*ther understand and agrée-that if the defendarit has provided
5
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false, incomplete, orinaccurate information that affects the calculations, the government is.not.
bound to make the recomiiendations contained in this-agreement.

Relevant Conduct

16. The patties acknowledge, understand, and agree that purstant to Sentericing,
Guidelines Manual § 1B1.3; the senténcing judge may consider relevant conduct i calculating
the sentencing guidelines. range, even if the relevant.conduet isnot the subject of the offense fo
which the deféndant.is pleading guilty.

17.. The parties agree fo recommend to the sentericing court: thatthe relévant.conduct
attributable to the defendant.s at Jeast 1 kilogram of heroin, 5 Kilograms.or more of ¢ocaine or
50 grams.or.more of methamphetamine

Base Offense Level
18. The patties will recommerid to the sentencing couft that the applicable base

offense level for the offense chatged i Counit Ohe is 30:undet Séntencing vGuideli'r‘icfsi Manugl §

2D 1.1¢e)(5).
‘Specific Offense Increases
19. The parties will yecommend that ne-specitic offense increases.apply in the case.
Aceeptance of Responsibility
20. The goverriment agrees to recommend a two-level decrease.for acceptance:of

responsibility as authorized by Sentencing Guidelines Manual § 3B1. 1{a), but only ifthe
defendant exhibits-conduet consistent with the.aceeptance of responsibility. In addition, if the;
court determines at the time. of sentencing that the defendant is entitled to the two-level reduction
under’§ 3E1 1{a); the goyernment agrees to make a miotion recommending.an additional one-
level decrease as authorized by Sentencing Guidelines Matwal § 3E1 1(b) becauise the defendant

timely notified authorities of his jritention to enteraplea of guilty.
6
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Sentencing Recommendations

21 ‘Both parties reserve.the right to provide the district court and the probation office
-with.any-and all information which:might be pertinent to'the sentencing process, including but
not limited to-any and all conduct related to the offerise as well as any and all matters which
inight constitute aggravating of mitigating sentencing factors.

22, Both parties reserve the right to make any tecommiendation tegarding any and all
factors pertinent to the determination of the sentencing guidelinerange; the fine to.be imposed;
‘the amount of restitution and the terms and condition of its payment; the length of supervised
release and the terms aﬁd conditions of the release; the defendant’s custodial status pending the
sentencing; and any other mafters. not specifically: addressed by this agreement.

23. The parties-agree t0 recommend a sentence within the applicable sentencing
guideline range. The govetnment remains free to take a position with respect to any fact.or factor

pertinent 10 the-sentencing decision consisterit with this agreement.

I

hs at-Sentencin

Court’

24. "The parties dcknowledge, undeistahd, and agree that néither the sentencing court
‘nor the United States, Probation Office is a party to or bound by this agreement. The United
States Probation Office will make. its own recommendations to the sentencing court. The
seritencing court will make ifs own.dete iinations regarding any and all issues relating to the
imposition of senterice-and may impose ahy senfence authotized by law upto the maximuin
penzﬂties:set; forth in-paragraphs 6 above. The parties-further understand that the sentencing coutt.
will be guided by the sentencing guidlelines but will not be bound by the sentencing: guidelines
and may impose 4 reasonable sentence above of below the.caleulated guideline range.

25. The parties acknowledge, understand, and agree that the defendant may not move

to-withdraw the guilty plea golely as-aresult of the sentence.imposed by the court.
y
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Forfeiture

26. Thie defendant agrees that all properties isted in-the superseding indictment
constitute the proceeds of the offerise.to-which hie is pleading guilty, or wete used to facilitate
such-offense, The defendant agrees fo the forfeituie of these properties and to fhe immediate
entry of apreliminary order of fotfeiture. The defendant aprees that he has-an interest in each of
the listed properties. The parties acknowledge and understand that the gDVemmeﬁt'~IcsﬁrVGS the.
right o proceed. against assets not identified in this agreement.

FINANCIAL MATTERS

27. “The defendant acknowledges and understands that.any and all-financial
obligations imposed by the sentencing cotirt are: due.and payaible in full uponentry of the
judgment of conviction or on.further ordet of the-court. The defendant further understands that
any payment schedule impased. by the sentencing eourt shall be the:minimum the defendant is
‘expected to pay and that the 'government’:s‘mlle'cﬁon of any and all court imposed financial
obligations is 16t limited fo the:payment sehedulé. The defendant agtees not fo. requeést any
delay orstay-in payment of any and all financial obligations. If the defendant is incarcerated, the
defendant agréesto participate iri the Bureau of Prisons” Inmate Financial Responsibility
‘Programi, regardless of whether the court specifically: directs participation or iinposes 4 schedule
of péyments'.,

28, The defendant agrees to proyide to the Financial Litigation Unit (FLU) of the
‘United States Attorney’s Office, upon tequest of the FLU duting any period of probation ot
supervised release imposed by the court, a complete and sworn financial statement on a form

provide‘d by-FLU and any documentation required by the forn,

Special Assessment
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29. The defendant.agrees to pay-the special assegsment in the:amount-of $100 prior to

or-af the time of sentencing.

DEFENDANT’S WAIVER OF RIGHTS

30. Tni enteting this agreement, the- deferdarit acknowledges and understands thathe.
surrenders any claims hi¢ may have raised in any pretrial motion, as well as-certain rights which
include the foll owing:

a. If the defendant persisted inaplea of not guilty to the.charges against him, he
would be-entitled to a speedy- dnd public trial by 4 court of jury. The defendait
has a right to ajury trial. However; in order-that the-trial be conducted by the:
judge sitting without a jury, the-defenidant, the goverriment and thie judge all

must agree that-the trial be conducted, by the judge without a jury

b. 1 thie trial is a jury trial, the jury woiild be composed of twelve citizens
selected at random. The defendant and his attorhey would have a.say in who.
the jurots would be'by rerhovirig prospective. jurofs for'cause -where actual
bias or-other disqualiﬁcaﬁon is shown, or without cause by gxercising
perebaptory ¢hatlenges. Thie jury’ would have to.agree utianimously: before it
could return a verdict of guilty. The court would instruct thejury that the
defendant is présumed innocent until such titng; if'ever, as the goveinment
establishes guilt by competent evidence to the satisfaction of the.jury beyond.a
reasonable doubt.

C If the trial is held by the judge without.a jury, the judge would find the facts
and determing, after hearig all of the:-evidence, whether or not he-was.
persuadedrof defendant’s guilt beyond a reasonable doubt:

d. At such-trial, whether by ajudge ora jury, the government would be required
to, preseitt witnesses and other evidence against the defendant. The defendant
would be ableto confront witnesses upon ths,etes'timony,the.‘ggv,emmcnt i8
relyirig to obtainia gonviction:and he would have theright to cross-examine
those witriesses. In turn the defendart could, but is not obligated to, present
wittiesses and: other evidence on ‘his own behalf. The defendant-would be
entitled to compulsory process to-call witnesses:

€, At such trial, defendant would have @ privilege against selfsincrimination se
that he could decline to testify and no inference of guilt couldbe drawn ffem
his refiisal to testify. If defendant desired to do s0, he could testify on his own
behalf
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31, The defendant acknowledges and understands. that by

pleading guilty he i

waiving all the tights st forth above. The defendant further acknowledges the fact that his

attorney has explained these ights to hini and the conisequencés of his waiver of these rights:

The defendant further acknowledges that as-a part of the guilty plea heatiiig, the court may

question the defendant under oath, on the record; and in the presence of cotnsel -about the

offenses to which the defendant intends:to. plead gui]ty_.- The defendant further understands that.

the-defendant’s answers may later be used against the defendant in a prosecution for perjury of

false statement.

32, “The defendant acknowledges and understands that he will be adjudicated guilty of

thesoffense to which-he will plead guilty and fhereby may be.deprived of cértain rights, including

butnot limited to the right to vote, to hold public office; to serve on a juiry, to possess firearms,

and to bé-employéd by a. federally insured financial institution.

33. The deferidant knowingly and voluntarily waives all claimng he may have based

iipon the-statutd of limitations, the Speedy Trial Act, and the speedy trial provisions of the Sixth

Attiendment. The défendant agrees that:any delay between the filing of this agreement and the:

entry of the deféndant’ s guilty pléa pursuant {0 this agreement, constitutes excludable time under

‘the Speedy Trial Act.

Further Civil or Administrative Action

34, The defendant acknowledges, understands, and agrees that.the defendant has

- disenssed with his attorney and understands that nothing contained in this agteement, including,

any atta

chment, is‘meant to limitthe rights and authority of the:Un

ited States of America ot any-

other state-or Jocal government to take. further civil, administrative, or regulatory action.against

the defendant, including but not:limited to any listing and debarment: proceedings to restrict

10
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rights and opportunities of the defendantfo contract with or recéive assistance, loans, and

benefits from United States goverimet agencics

GENERAL MATTERS

35. The paities acknowledge, undetstand, and agree that this agteeinént does not

require the government 1o take, ot not to take, any ‘particular positiont ihany post-convietion

motion or appeal.

36. The parties acknowledge, understand, and agree that the United States Attorney®s

office is freetomofify any Jocal, state, or federal agency. of the defendant’s conviction.

EFFECT OF DEFENDANT’S. BREACH OF PLEA AGREEMENT

37. "The defendant ackiiowledges and anderstands if he violates any term.of this

agreemient 4t any time, engages in any fuirther cririinal activity prior to.sent

eficing; or fails to

appear fot sentencing, this agreement shall become uill and void at the discretion of the

governmént. The defendant fiirther acknowledges and undeistands that the government’s

agreermet to dismiss any charge 18 conditionsl upon final resolution of this matter. If this plea,

agreement i8 revoked of if'the defendant’s cotiviction ultimately is-oveiturned, then the

government retains the.right to reinstate any and all digmissed charges and to filg any and.all

charges which were not filed because of this agreement, The defendant hereby 'knowingly..and

voluntarily waives any defense based on the applicable statute of limitations for any charges filed'

against the defendant.as.a result.of his breach of this agreement. The defendant- understands,

‘however, that the government may elect to proceed with the guilty plea and sentencing, If the

defendant and his attorney have signed a profier letter in connegtion

with this case, then the

defendant further acknowledges and understands that he continues to bessubject to the terms of

theproffer lettet.

11
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\LOLU.NTARINESS OF DEFENDANT’S PLEA

38. The-defendant acknowledges, understarids, and agrees that he-will plead guilty

freely and yoluntarily because he is in fact:guilty. The defendant further acknowledges and
agrees that no-threats, promises, represetitations, oi othetinducements have beéft made, nor

agreemgnts reachied; other than those set forth in this-agreement, to inidice the defendant to pl ead

guilty.

12
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ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

1 am the defendant, I am entering into this plea. agreement freely and voluntarily. l.am not now’
ori of unider the influehce of any drug, medication, alcohol, ot other intoxicant or depressant,
whether or not-prescribed by a physician, which-would impsirny ability to understand the. teims
énd coniditions. of this agteement. My attorney has feviewed every patt of. this agreement with ine
and has advised nie of-the implications fthe sentencing-guidelines, T have discussed all aspects
of this case with my attorney and T am satisfied that my attorney has provided effective

assistanceof counsel.

pater 1= @\ ( _ )wu LS
OSCAR ALONSO =
Defendant

T-am the defendant’s attorney. [ carefully have reviewed every part of this agreemient with the-
.deféndant. To ny knowledge, my olient’s decision to enter into ‘this-agreement is.an informed

and Vbiuﬁtary one. ' C’W(m
Date: q i ‘?‘\ ' . .
CHRISTOPHER HARTLEY
Attorney for Defendant
Tor the United States of Ametica:
. //\
Date: CZ (/QO‘;“
07”” RICHARD-G. FROHLING

Acting United States Attotney

Date: ?(&(ug« M’

WILLIAM J. ROACH
Assistant Uriited States. Attorney

13.
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